
If you require an adjustment to enable you to participate or access the meeting, please 
contact the Democratic Services team at least 48 hours before the meeting. 

ASHFIELD DISTRICT COUNCIL  
 
 

Council Offices, 
Urban Road, 

Kirkby in Ashfield 
Nottingham 
NG17 8DA 

 

Agenda 
 
Scrutiny Panel A 
 
 

Date: Tuesday, 7th November, 2017 

Time: 6.30 pm 

Venue: 
Committee Room, Council Offices, Urban Road, 
Kirkby-in-Ashfield 

  

For any further information please contact: 
 

Lynn Cain 
 

l.cain@ashfield.gov.uk 
 

01623 457317 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

SCRUTINY PANEL A 

Membership 

 

Chairman: Councillor Jim Aspinall 

Vice-Chairman: Councillor John Knight 

 
Councillors:  
Tony Brewer Steve Carroll 
Joanne Donnelly Cathy Mason 
Lachlan Morrison Kevin Rostance 
Helen-Ann Smith  

 
 
 
 
 

FILMING/AUDIO RECORDING NOTICE 
 
This meeting may be subject to filming or audio recording. If you have any queries 
regarding this, please contact Democratic Services on 01623 457317. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUMMONS 
 
You are hereby requested to attend a meeting of the Scrutiny Panel A to be held at the 
time/place and on the date mentioned above for the purpose of transacting the business 
set out below. 
 

  
R. Mitchell 
Chief Executive 



 

 

AGENDA Page 
 
1.   To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

 
 

 

2.   Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary or Personal Interests and 
Non Disclosable Pecuniary/Other Interests.  
 
 

 

3.   To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 12th 
September, 2017.  
 
 

5 - 8 

4.   Scrutiny Review of Outside Bodies.  
 
 

9 - 14 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

SCRUTINY PANEL A 
 

Meeting held in the Committee Room, Council Offices, Urban Road, Kirkby-in-Ashfield, 
 

on Tuesday, 12th September, 2017 at 6.30 pm 
 
 

Present:  
 

Councillor Jim Aspinall in the Chair; 

 Councillors Steve Carroll, Joanne Donnelly, 
John Knight, Rachel Madden (substitute for Tony 
Brewer), Lachlan Morrison, Christine Quinn-
Wilcox (substitute for Helen-Ann Smith) and 
Kevin Rostance. 
 

Apologies for Absence: Councillors Tony Brewer, Cathy Mason and 
Helen-Ann Smith. 
 

Officers Present: Lynn Cain and Mike Joy. 
 

In Attendance: Councillor Paul Roberts. 

 
 
 
 

SA.4 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary or Personal Interests and Non 
Disclosable Pecuniary/Other Interests 
 

 No declarations of interest were made. 
 

 
SA.5 Minutes 

 
 RESOLVED 

that the minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 11th July, 2017, be 
received and approved. 
 

 
SA.6 Introduction to Scrutiny Review of Membership of Outside Bodies 

 
 The Scrutiny Manager informed the Panel that the ‘Member representation on 

Outside Bodies’ topic had been added to the 2017/18 Scrutiny Workplan to 
enable Members to consider the ongoing value such representation provides 
to the Council and its local communities. 
 
Members were currently appointed to 40 Outside Bodies ranging from local 
charities to national boards and organisations as follows:- 
 
1. Ageing Well Network 
2. Ashfield Citizens Advice Bureau Management Committee 
3. Ashfield Community Safety Partnership Joint Strategic Group 
4. Ashfield Homes Limited 
5. Association for Public Service Excellence 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

6. Beauvale Charity – Hucknall 
7. Byron Charity - Hucknall 
8. Cahn Memorial Homes – Hucknall 
9. Citizens’ Reference Panel (NHS) 
10. Campaign to Protect Rural England (Nottinghamshire Branch) 
11. D2N2 Local Enterprise Partnership Board 
12. East Midlands Councils  
13. Economic Prosperity Committee 
14. George and Ada Shepherd and Moss and Plumb’s Charity 
15. Greater Nottingham Joint Planning Advisory Board 
16. Greenwood Community Forest Steering Group 
17. Groundwork Cresswell, Ashfield & Mansfield    
18. Health and Wellbeing Board (County Council) 
19. Historic England 
20. Hucknall & District Voluntary Partnership (Under One Roof Project) 
21. Hucknall Partnership Group 
22. Hucknall Relief in Need Charity 
23. The Industrial Communities Alliance  
24. LGA District Council’s Network 
25. Mansfield & Ashfield Economic Development Partnership (MAEDP) 
26. Mansfield & District Crematorium Joint Committee 
27. Market Traders Consultative Committee 
28. Memorandum of Understanding between Ashfield District Council, 

Mansfield District Council, Newark and Sherwood District Council And 
Nottingham County Council Sponsor’s Board 

29. NET Partnership Group  
30. N.I.D.A.S 
31. Nottinghamshire Building Preservation Trust 
32. Nottinghamshire Joint Waste Management Committee 
33. Nottinghamshire Local Government Leaders’ Group  
34. Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust 
35. Our Centre 
36. PATROL: Adjudication Joint Committee  
37. Police and Crime Commissioner Panel 
38. Rural Community Action Nottinghamshire 
39. Sherwood Forest Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
40. Teversal Grange Advisory Committee. 

 
Members were currently appointed to Outside Bodies for varying terms of 
office (ranging from 1 to 4 years) at the Annual Meeting of the Council in May 
of each year.  Outside Bodies were then provided with contact details for the 
appointed Council representative(s) and asked to make contact with the 
Member(s) to attend meetings, seminars, workshops etc. as appropriate. 
 
The Scrutiny Manager advised Members that they might wish to consider 
processes to monitor Outside Bodies feedback and activity. The Council 
presently did not ask Members to provide feedback on any information they 
gleaned at meetings which could potentially provide details of possible funding 
opportunities, initiatives or projects dependent on the Body concerned.  In 
addition, the Outside Bodies very rarely provided any updates or feedback 
back to the Council regarding their work within the Ashfield area or any 
contributions from the Council representative(s) in attendance. 
 

Page 6



 

The Panel were advised that some local authorities ensured that the Council 
representatives they appointed were only to Outside Bodies aligned with their 
own corporate priorities and strategies to ensure any information gleaned 
added value to their particular corporate approach.  In addition, some local 
authorities produced an Outside Bodies Annual Report which gave 
feedback/updates in relation to the work undertaken by their particular Outside 
Bodies over the preceding 12 months including the impact/contribution it had 
made towards the particular Council’s corporate priorities.   
 
The Panel acknowledged that there was also a cost to Members representing 
the Council on some Outsides Bodies in the form of travel and subsistence 
claims for attending meetings outside the District.   
 
A lengthy debate ensued whereby Members discussed the following:- 
 

 slight concerns regarding the amount of Outside Bodies the Council 
currently appointed to; 

 

 the perceived haphazard approach to selecting Outside Bodies for the 
Council to appoint representatives to and attend meetings thereof; 

 

 acknowledgement that no feedback was currently received from 
Members attending Outside Body meetings and the realisation that 
pertinent information might be being missed; 

 

 following attendance at a meeting, a suggestion that Members submit 
feedback to the three political groups regarding the topics discussed (in 
a format to be agreed); 

 

 recognition that many of the Outside Bodies undertake sterling work 
and that there were benefits to be gained from the Council being 
represented at such meetings; 

 

 suggestion for officers to undertake a phone canvass or questionnaire 
to elicit Members views regarding the effectiveness, or otherwise, of 
Council representation on Outside Bodies; 
 

 to make a request to the Council’s Corporate Leadership Team to 
outline their vision of how Council representation on Outside Bodies 
should be facilitated to achieve maximum value going forward; 
 

 suggestion to undertake an exercise to ensure there is no duplication of 
work between the Outside Bodies currently appointed to; 
 

 proposal for officers to undertake a data capture exercise from Outside 
Bodies in relation to Council Member attendance at their meetings and 
the Member’s perceived contribution/interest into the work of the 
particular organisation; 
 

 the benefits of ascertaining best practice from other local authorities in 
relation to their management of Council representation on Outside 
Bodies. 
 

Page 7



 

RESOLVED 
that the Scrutiny Manager be requested to undertake the following in 
readiness for the next meeting of the Panel:- 
 
a) to e-mail a complete list of Outside Bodies to all Members and ask them to 

indicate which bodies they believe are a priority to the Council and to which 
representation should be maintained; 

 
b) to undertake a data capture exercise (via phone canvass or questionnaire), 

to elicit Members views regarding the current effectiveness, or otherwise, 
of Council representation on Outside Bodies; 

 
c) to undertake an additional data capture exercise (via phone canvass or 

questionnaire), to elicit the views of Outside Bodies regarding Ashfield 
Council Member attendance at meetings and their contribution/interest into 
the work of the particular organisation; 

 
d) to ascertain best practice from a sample of local authorities in relation to 

their management of Council representation on Outside Bodies. 
 
(During consideration of this item, Councillor Joanne Donnelly entered the 
meeting at 6.35 p.m.  Councillor John Knight also left the room at 6.42 p.m. 
and returned to the meeting at 6.45 p.m.) 
 

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 7.05 pm  
 

 
 
Chairman. 

 

Page 8



   

 

Report To: SCRUTINY PANEL A Date: 7 NOVEMBER 2017 

Heading: SCRUTINY REVIEW OF OUTSIDE BODIES - UPDATE 

Portfolio Holder: NONE 

Ward/s:  ALL 

Key Decision: NO 

Subject to Call-In: NO 

Purpose Of Report 
 
Members of Scrutiny Panel A were introduced to a new review to consider Outside Bodies at 
the last meeting of the Panel, held on the 12 September. Members agreed to consider the 
following; 

 

 Number of outside bodies 

 Strategic and community benefit of outside bodies 

 Criteria for appointment 

 Reporting mechanisms 
 
This report provides an update on the research work that has been undertaken so far and 
work still to be completed.  
 

Recommendation(s) 

 

 Note the information contained in this report; 

 Identify any further information required to carry out the review. 

Reasons for Recommendation(s) 

 
Membership of Outside Bodies was identified and approved as a topic in 2017 following 
consultation on the Scrutiny Workplan. 

Alternative Options Considered (With Reasons Why Not Adopted) 

 
None at this stage. Consideration of this topic is aimed at understanding and discussing 
current appointments to outside bodies. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 
Detailed Information 
 
Members are currently appointed to Outside Bodies for varying terms of office (ranging from 1 
to 4 years) at the Annual Meeting of the Council in May of each year. Outside Bodies are then 
provided with contact details for the appointed Council representative(s) and asked to make 
contact with the Member(s) to attend meetings, seminars, workshops etc. as appropriate.  
 
As part of the initial discussions Members agreed that feedback from those currently 
appointed to outside bodies was required to ascertain; 
 

 Understanding of the role on any particular outside body; 

 Potential benefits to Ashfield District Council; 

 Officer support; 

 Feedback mechanisms. 
 
A telephone survey was conducted with Members on Outside Bodies in October 2017.  Of the 
13 Members who responded the following feedback was received; 
 

 
Question 

 

 
Responses 

 
Has the Outside Body advised you what its 
role is? 
 

 
10 = Yes 
3   = No 

 
What do you consider the benefits to ADC 
are in providing a Member to this outside 
body? 
 

 
A range of comments were received relating 
to the perceived benefits from Membership 
of an outside body. These included; 
 

 Insight into what is happening in the 
community; 

 Provides ADC with a voice; 

 Ensuring fair distribution of Grant Aid; 

 Influencing and contributing to 
important local and national 
decisions; 

 More effective partnership working; 

 Providing crucial support to groups; 
 

 
Is any officer support provided? 
 

 
Yes = 3 
No   = 10 
 

 
Do you feed back to anywhere on your 
activities as a Member of an outside body? 
 

 
Yes = 5 
No   = 8 
 
* feedback was mainly reported back 
verbally to Group meetings or relevant Ward 
Member. 
 

 
 

Page 10



 
In addition to ascertaining Members views, the Panel also requested that an additional data 
capture exercise, to elicit the views of Outside Bodies regarding Ashfield Council Member 
attendance at meetings and their contribution/interest into the work of the particular 
organisation be undertaken.  Work on this exercise is still ongoing and will be presented to 
Members at the Panel meeting in November.  
 
Regarding feeding information back following the attendance at a meeting of an outside body, 
the initial findings suggest that, if done, this is mainly done verbally at a group meeting. At the 
initial meeting of the Scrutiny Panel, Members expressed a concern that if information 
updates are not supplied, important information both locally and nationally could be missed.   
 
Whilst the Council do not currently have a formal reporting framework for members appointed 
to outside organisations, Members of the Panel felt that the idea of a short Member report 
could be provided when the individual Member felt that there was something significant to 
report back on. Initial discussions suggested that this could either be through a quarterly 
update to all Members or through a more formal meeting such as Group Leaders or Council. 
 
This could help share information about each organisation’s work between Members, and 
also provide the opportunity for all members to ask questions and seek clarification where 
necessary. Some Councils have introduced such reporting frameworks which require 
appointed members to complete a quarterly or annual report on the work of the organisation 
they have been appointed to, outlining the benefits to the Council and the community of the 
work of the organisation, information on activities and achievements, the number of meetings 
attended and whether member support should continue to be provided. 
 
Once completed these would then be filed and held for members of the Council to view. 
This approach ensures members have the opportunity to express their views as to the value 
of Membership on a particular outside organisation. It also enables members to confirm on an 
annual basis if they have the time to continue to devote to the role or even whether member 
support should continue to be provided. 
 
Current Approach and Best Practice  
 
Outside Bodies approach the Council for the nomination of a Member in accordance with their 
Constitution. The Council has, in the past, responded positively to such requests and has not 
formally scrutinised them to establish the benefits which may accrue through Member 
representation.  
 
Research is currently ongoing to gain an understanding of the approaches adopted by other 
Councils to seek best practice, an update will provided at the Panel meeting in November. 
 
Strategic Representation  
 
At the last meeting of the Panel Members agreed that, at present it was unclear, without a 
formal appraisal system, as to what potential benefit appointing a representative to each of 
the 40 outside bodies has. 
 
There are no formal exercises currently undertaken to enable ADC to clearly define at a 
strategic level, where there is a clear benefit to the Council and its support to the delivery of 
the Corporate Plan.  
 

Members will need to consider whether a broad classification of Outside Bodies should be 
adopted To define the relationship between the Outside Body and the Council as this will help 
with determining which Outside Bodies appointments should be made in future. There are 
three broad categories of involvement: Page 11



 

 Strategic; 

 Statutory; 

 Community/Citizenship. 
 
It is recognised that the Council has supported some of these bodies for many years 
and Members in some cases have developed strong relationships with these Outside Bodies 
particularly if it serves their Ward or if it is an area where they can bring specific expertise. 
 
Next Steps 
 
The Scrutiny Manager will present the findings of the Outside Bodies survey and best practice 
information at the next meeting of the Panel. Members will need to consider a range of 
information to move this review forward. This includes; 
 

 Agreeing an appropriate feedback mechanism; 

 Discussing definitions and strategic links for each Outside Body; 

 Understanding the time commitment required for each outside body; 

 Reviewing overall costs of appointing to Outside Bodies; 

 Reviewing the current list of outside bodies. 
 
Implications 
 
Corporate Plan:  
 
It is essential that the Council has an understanding of the value of appointing to outside 
bodies to better understand engagement, partnership working and Councillor 
Development. 
 
Legal: 
 
None arising directly from this report. 
 
Finance: 
 
As part of the ongoing research an understanding of the current costs associated from 
appointing to an outside body is currently being undertaken. This includes annual 
Membership Fees, travel and accommodation and event hosting. Advice from Finance will be 
undertaken to gain an overall understanding of costs. 
 
 

Budget Area Implication 
 

 
General Fund – Revenue Budget 

 
N/A 

 
General Fund – Capital 
Programme 

 
N/A 

 
Housing Revenue Account – 
Revenue Budget 

 
N/A 

 
Housing Revenue Account – 
Capital Programme 

 
N/A 

Page 12



 
 
Risk: 
 

 
 

Risk 
 

Mitigation  

 
None arising at this stage of the 
review. 

 
Any risks identified will be reviewed to explore 
appropriate solutions. 
 

Human Resources:  
 
None arising directly from this report. 
 
Equalities  
 
None arising directly from this report. 
 
Other Implications: 
 
None arising directly from this report. 
 
 
Report Author and Contact Officer 
 
Mike Joy, Scrutiny Manager 
M.joy@ashfield.gov.uk 
Tel: 01623 457232 
 
Ruth Dennis 
Director of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 12th September, 2017.
	4 Scrutiny Review of Outside Bodies.

